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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202311235 Data and Survey Services for State TANF and ASPIRE-TANF Programs

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Family Independence

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	December 14, 2023, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	December 29, 2023

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	January 10, 2023, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I. A. – page 5
	For the anonymous survey, will the state provide contact info for current and former TANF and ASPIRE-TANF participants?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, the Department will provide contact information to the awarded Bidder.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. Is there a specific budget or approximate budget range for this opportunity?  

b. If so, can you please share that budget or range with potential bidders?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department declines to answer.
b. N/A


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section C.4.a, page 9
	The State requires that the vendor administering the survey should “ensure participants are provided an opportunity to respond orally when the Participant requests interpreter services or other reasonable accommodations.” 

If the selected vendor does not have in-house translation/interpretation services, can it utilize the State’s interpretation services? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section B. 3.
	Will data provided by the Department include survey participants’ emails and phone numbers to administer the survey via email or text?  

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, if the data was voluntarily provided by the client.


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section B. 3.
	If a decision is made to submit a survey via postal mail, will the Department provide letterhead, envelopes, and postage, or is this the vendor's responsibility?

	
	Answer

	
	It is the awarded Bidder’s responsibility to provide the materials needed for any survey responses. The Department will provide the letterhead template. 


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section D
	Does this section reference the data analysis identified in 22 M.R.S. § 3109 #2, A – K and #3?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	Is the Department asking the vendor for recommendations to improve or mitigate any findings as described in 22 M.R.S. § 3109 #3. B?

	
	Answer

	
	The awarded Bidder shall be responsible for an entire draft of the report, which will be reviewed and edited by the Department before publication, refer to Part II, D. 2. – 3.  of the RFP.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	Part I identifies the purpose and background, is the intent to include Part I Section A 1-4 as part of the scope of this contract?

	
	Answer

	
	Part I, A., 1. – 4., is a summary of Part II of the RFP and will be included in the resulting contract. 


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section E
	Does the Department anticipate or expect the vendor to produce a governance plan for the representative group?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	Does the department expect any project management plans to be provided by the vendor?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion.


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section II Number 5
	As a privately held limited liability company, we do not disclose our financial information publicly.  

a. What e-mail address may we submit financial information to confidentially? 

b. Will financial records be considered confidential information? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to Part III, C. 2. of the RFP.
b. Bidders may mark some portion of their proposal as confidential.  If a Bidder marks some portion of their proposal as confidential then the Department will provide the Bidder with a reasonable opportunity to object to public disclosure of the proposal.  The Department, however, provides no assurance regarding whether any portion of the proposal will ultimately be determined to be confidential and not publicly disclosed.


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What goals does the state have for the analysis of the Child and Family Economic Security Data? (i.e., what questions are they trying to answer with this data, or what goals do they need to meet?)

	
	Answer

	
	As this is outside the scope of work within the RFP, the Department declines to answer.


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II Scope of Services to be Provided Pages 8-10
	Will the Department work with the vendor to understand and obtain access to available Child and Family Economic Security Data from their records and form other departments across the state?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will coordinate across State offices to collect data that is within State custody, which will be provided to the awarded Bidder for analysis, along with a description of the content and sources of the data. The awarded Bidder shall be responsible for collecting any publicly available data, e.g., Census.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II Scope of Services to be Provided Pages 8-10
	Will the Department assist in facilitating communication with current and former participants?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 1 of this document.


	15
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II Scope of Services to be Provided Pages 8-10
	Does the Department anticipate a specific number (or frequency) of meetings of the Representative Group?

	
	Answer

	
	This is dependent on the decisions of the Representative Group members themselves as a self-governing group, but a reasonable number of meetings may be anticipated for the timeframe.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Would the State please indicate how they would like respondents to identify any confidential, trade secret, or proprietary information?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders may mark some portion of their proposal as confidential.  If a Bidder marks some portion of their proposal as confidential then the Department will provide the Bidder with a reasonable opportunity to object to public disclosure of the proposal.  The Department, however, provides no assurance regarding whether any portion of the proposal will ultimately be determined to be confidential and not publicly disclosed.


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	a. Has Maine ever done a survey of current of former ASPIRE families? 

b. If so, was that conducted in house or by an outside vendor (please provide the name of that vendor)?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes.
b. American Institutes for Research (formerly IMPAQ) conducted a former survey.


	18
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, page 15
	Is there a set budget for this project?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department declines to answer.


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, page 15
	Are other travel expenses besides mileage allowable?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion. 


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section D, page 9
	What is the data source for participants in the survey and who is the data coming from?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 1 of this document.


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section E, page 9
	Will participants of the Representative Group only be former or current TANF participants or will they also include program staff?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the definition of Representative Group within the RFP.


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section E, page 10
	a. Is the expectation that the awarded bidder will present on behalf of the Representative Group or is the expectation that the participants will conduct data analysis, generate, a report, and present themselves?

b. What are the expected responsibilities of the Representative Group broadly?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Representative Group will present their own report to the Joint Standing Committee, if they elect to do so, with administrative and technical support from the awarded Bidder.
b. The Representative Group has no expected responsibilities, refer to 22 M.R.S. §3109(3). 


	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section C, page 9
	Is the department okay with anonymity being impossible (but confidentiality still achievable) when a participant requests interpreter services or another reasonable accommodation?

	
	Answer

	
	The survey results shall be anonymized before being provided to the Department for review.


	24
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, Section C, page 9
	Please elaborate on the requirement to have anonymity and the extent to which that is required.

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 23 of this document.


	25
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Not provided
	Will surveys be offered in multiple languages? If yes, what languages?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion to determine what languages should be offered based on participants needs.


	26
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C.1.a. page 8
	C.1.a indicated only ASPIRE-TANF participants surveyed or is this a question only for the ASPIRE-TANF participants?

	
	Answer

	
	The survey is intended for both TANF and ASPIRE-TANF participants.


	27
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	C.4. page 9
	Is biannual considered twice a year or every other year? (The term is often used either way, we wish to be clear on the State’s requirement.)

	
	Answer

	
	Biannual refers to every other year.


	28
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section C, pages 8/9
	What is the total population for each program from which the sample will be drawn for TANF and ASPIRE-TANF participants?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the Department’s OFI Data & Reports webpage for historic enrollment levels.


	29
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section C, pages 8/9
	Are multiple age groups to be surveyed and if so, what are those age groups?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Bidder’s discretion to determine the best representative sample to perform the services outlined in the RFP.


	30
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section C, pages 8/9
	Will the printed survey need to be in English and Spanish?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 25 of this document.


	31
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section C, pages 8/9
	a. Does the State require a separate and different survey for the TANF and ASPIRE-TANF participant surveys? 

b. Alternatively, does the State intend that one survey instrument will serve both populations?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department anticipates one (1) survey to be provided to both TANF and ASPIRE-TANF participants.
b.  Yes.


	32
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section C, pages 8/9
	Will the State provide contact information which includes current addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, and preferred language for the total sample population?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 1 of this document. 


	33
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section E.2. page 9
	Can the Representative Group be convened virtually? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Representative Group shall be afforded the opportunity to meet in-person and/or virtually.


	34
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section E.2. page 9
	Is there a minimum size required for the representative group?

	
	Answer

	
	No, the Representative Group is voluntary.


	35
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section E. page 9
	Would members of the Representative Group be allowed reimbursement or compensation for participation?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department does not anticipate reimbursement or compensation for participation at this time.


	36
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, Section II.6, page 14
	Beyond General Liability and Professional Liability, what other insurance does the State expect to be in place for performance of this work?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should consult with their insurance agency to determine to appropriate levels of insurance.


	37
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part VI, Section A, page 18
	The RFP states the bidder will be required to execute a State BP54-IT with appropriate riders as determined by the issuing department. In addition to a BAA and Rider B-IT, what other contract-related documents will be required of the successful bidder?

	
	Answer

	
	The full set of contract documents will be determined during contract negotiations.   Forms and contract documents commonly used by the State and Department can be found in Part VI, A.1. of the RFP.
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